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About Us

MaxSee Group i1s a leading global provider of
integrated security and rurn-key solutions.

MaxSec Group has a world class research and
development team. a strong portfolio of proprietary
praducts  and, where relevant, sources products
through partnerships with leading manufacturers to
meel Lhe supply requirements of ils cuslommers,

The product portfolio of the Group consists of smart
card bascd access control, bromeiric solutions and
electromechanical  locking devices, which are
inslilled in thousands of locations globally.

MaxSec Group has also established a new business,
Avvit, 10 provide secure international logistics ol high
value carge on a tully insured door to door basis.
Avva offer a truly global service capabilily, delivered
from its own strategically located offices (New
York, London, Frankfurt, Dubai and Singapore)
with support [rom o nelwork ol specialist and
strategic partners in over 100 countries.

Notice of Annual General Meeting

A separate notice of Annual General Meeting will
be sent 1o sharcholders.
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

Dear Sharcholders,
It is my pleasure lo present the 2016 Annual Report for MaxSec Group Limited.

The 2016 Financial Year saw the Group establishing its secure international logistics division, Ava and the
onboarding of additional resources Lo cxpand the BQT Solution’s business market reach, As a result ol this
investment in building the business. the Group generated a net loss of $1.391 million for the year. Revenues of
$4.344K were reported for the financial year,

We also welcomed Christopher Fergus as an executive Direetor of MaxSec during the year with Chris taking on
the role of CEQ Ava Global, the Group's secure international logistics business and also as MaxSec’s Senior Vice
President of Strategy and Business Development. Chris comes 1o the Group after mare than 20 years experience
at (345, His most recent position held was Regional Managing Director, Middle Fast.

The CEOs report further details the progress by management and staff against the company’s stralegic objectives
and goals.

Some of the highlights include:-

- The Group's secure international logistics division, Ava was established with Ava now positioned to
provide services through a global network of offices and sirategic partnerships across six continents,
- BOQT Solutions Distribution Agreements signed with Honeywell, Hills Limited and Locksmith Supply

Company,
- Newly developed and third party products released [rom BOT Solutions Smart Reader & Biometrics

division,

On behalt of the Board [ would like to sincerely thank management and stafl [or their dedication and ¢lTort during
the vear.

e
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Robert A Broomfield
Chairman
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
Dear Sharcholders,

It is my pleasure to report that the Group is continuing in achieving its strategic objectives of building its
business in the Secuarity industry.

During the year we raised $6.1 million of capital by way of a Private Placement and a Non Renouncable Rights
Tssue. This capital was raised for the establishment of a secure inlernational logistics division, Ava, and for the

expansion of BQT Solutions business. Both initiatives are proceding according to plan.

As a result of this investment, the Net Loss for the year of $1,391K was a 437.94%, decrease on the last financial
year (2015; $41 1K),

Revenue was also down 16.49% 10 S4.344K on the previous year (20152 $5,202K).

Year ended MNel Profit / (Loss) Revenue
30 June, 2016 O (foon'sy ' (1391 | 4,344
| 30 June, 2015 (FO00's) 411 5,202

At the end of the Financial Year Net Cash available for completion of the establishment of Ava and the
expansion of the current business of the consolidated group was 54.968K (2015: S682K).

Shareholder’s Funds have increased during the vear by 122.77% to $8,923K from $4,0006K. Since | July 2010
Sharcholder’s Tunds have increased by 491% from $1,51 11K,

Ava, our secure international logistics division, succesfully established its global service capability with
operations in Dubai, New York, London, Frankfurt and Singapore and a network of specialist and sirategic
partners in over 100 couniries covering six continents,

During the financial year we have appointed an addilional three major distributors, Honeywell, Hills Limited and
Locksmith Supply Company to distribute BQT Solutions products, Since the end of the financial year we have
also appointed Access Hardware Group as a distributor, continuing our focus on increasing distribution
channels.

Our development focus this year has been on building enhancements to the new hardware technology with the
release ol OSDP readers to the market and development of IP/POE connectivity to our reader and Biometric
Scamner Range. We have also developed template managemenl sollware and TP connectivity to enhance our
Biometric Scanners, We have added complimentary third party products to our range such as SME controllers in
order to assist in driving sales of our BOT Solutions developed products,

We remain commiltted and confident to successfully execute our expansion sirategy and will continue
intensilying our efforts to develop our geographic reach and volume channels by increasing our products and
services range to appeal to more markets and applications.

Your Directors remain focused on delivering the Group's stated stralegic objectives and continue to support
management in implementing and exceuting these objectives to increase shareholder value

Geoffrey J Cleaves
CEQ and Director
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OPERATION AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Principal Activities
The prineipal activilies ol the consolidated sroup during the financial year werc: -
- the investment, development and marketing of security access control products; and
- establishing an intemational valuable logistics division which is operated under Ava Global DMCC, a
wholly owned subsidiary of BQT Solutions (UK) Limited, incorporated in UAT in Jun 2016,

Operating Results
The Finsneial RBeport shows the Tollowing results for the consolidated MaxSce Group Limited ("MSP” or the
“Group™) entity,

(a) Revenue and Protit

The consolidated Group generated a net loss of $1.390 million (2013: net profit $411K) with revenues of
$4. 344K (2015; 55,202K). Revenue for the financial vear decreased 16% ($858K).

The decrease in Revenue mainly resulted from the delaved award of project opportunitics lowards the end of the
yvedr, The lnancial year end Net Loss resull represents a decreasce ol 51,80 (438%) on the previous year’s Net
Protit, The Met Loss is reflective of the Group costs in establishing the secure international logistics division,
Ava in the second half of the year and the onboarding of additional resources Lo expand the BOT Solution’s
business market reach.

(h) Met Cash

et Cash used by Operating Activities was $1.276K {2015: $nil), receipts from customers amounted 1o S4,764K
(2015 53,639K) and payments lo supplicrs and employees amounted (o $6,272K (2015 S3.839K) The net cash
used in Operating Activities is reflective of the costs of operation of the BQT Solutions business and the
establishment of the secure international logistics division, Ava in the second half of the vear,

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to $3435K (2015; $325K) and relates primarily to our investment
in continuous improvement of product and technology platforms which will provide both revenue benefils and
cost savings in [uture periods,

There was cash of $6.121 million raised in financing activities for the year (2015: $nil). This amount raised is
for the establishment of secure international logistics division, Ava and for the expansion of the BOT Selutions
business,

Met cash available to the consolidated Group was 54,968 million (2015: $682K).

Review of Operations

The second half of the vear saw the Group commence estahlishment of its secure intermnational logistics division,
Ava. Ava s now positioned to provide services through a global network of ollices and strategic parinerships
across six continents.

During the 2016 financial year the Group’s BOT Solutions division signed distribution agreements with Hills
Limited, Honeywell and Locksmith Supply Company.

We have confinued caleulaled mvestment into new products during the year which we feel will generate
additional revenue and cost saving opportunities for the Group in future periods.

The new Ava global office and strategic partner network will provide opportunities for the further expansion of
the BT Solutions business sales and distribution networl,
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OPERATION AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT.)

New Products

BOT Solution’s product development program continues to design and develop both new and innovative
products to meet the demands of the physical and logical access control market. During the year we introduced
new biometrics software products to the market and increased new functionality Lo existing products. We have
also introduced a number of third party products into our range to supplement our trusted in-house producl range
and provide a broader product offering to our market. We currently have several new products under
development including an access control system, and TP connection for our range of Smart Readers and
Scanners.

Summary and Outlook
The financial perfonnance of MaxScee Group Limited consolidated group is in line with our expectation,
considering the investment into the Ava business and our ongoing BQT Solutions expansion program.

Year ended Net Profit / (Loss) Revenue
| 30June 2016 (5000°s) (1.391) 4,344
A0 June, 2015 {F000°s) 411 _ 5,202

The Directors remain focused on continuing along the path of delivering the Group’s staled strategic objectives
as noled below and continue to support management in implementing and executing these objectives to increase
shareholder value, these are:-

- Develop and launch new products to increase market share and profitability;

- Targeted acquisitions to grow the product portlfolio, revenue and profits;

- Implementation and continued development of a direct sales model for BQ'Ts traditional core markets
and a distribution model for developing and other markets;

- Integrated sales approach offering holistic security solutions to Group clients; and

- Cost control and working capital maximization initiatives.

Significant Changes in State of Affairs
The following significant changes in the state of allairs of the parent entity oceurred during the tinancial year:

i. On 7 September 2015, 14,000,000 ordinary shares at 2 cents each woere 1ssued on exercise of unlisted
oplions to Pandon Holdings Ple, Lid,

i1, O 28 January 2016, the company issued an additional 70,000,000 ordinary shares at 3 cents cach under
private placement,

i1i. On | March 2016, the company issued 136,837,285 ordinary shares at 3 cents each to shareholders on

Non Renounceable Rights [ssue.

Events after the Reporting Period
Mo other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial vear which significantly affected or

could significantly aflect the operations of the consolidated group, the results of those operations, or the state of
alfairs of the consolidated group in future financial years.

Environmental Issues
The Company's operations are not regulated by any significant envirenmental regulation under a law ol the

Commonwealth or of a State or Territory,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
MaxSec Group Limited’s Corporate Governance Arrangements

The objective of the Board of Max5Sec Group Limited is to create and deliver long-term shareholder value
through a range of diversified manufacturing and wholesaling activities, While each area of the company’s
business activities holds significant value and makes a substantial contribution towards achieving the Board’s
nbjective, management of the synergies arising from the interrelations between the various business activities is
critical 1o achieving the objective of creating and delivering long-term shareholder value,

The Board considers there to be an unambiguous and positive relationship between the creation and delivery of
long-term shareholder value and high-quality corporate governance, Accordingly, in pursuing its objective, the
Board has committed to corporate governance arrangements that strive to foster the values of integrity, respect,
trust and openness among and between Board members, management, emplovees, customers and supplicrs.

MaxSee Group Limited and its subsidiaries operate as a single economic entity with a unified Board and
management. As such, the Board’s corporale governanee arrangements apply Lo all entitics within the economic

aroup,

MaxSec Group Limited is listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX),  Accordingly, unless stated
otherwise in this document, the Board's corporate governance arrangements comply with the recommendations
al the ASX Corporale Governance Council (including the 2014 amendments) as well as current standards of
best practice for the entire financial year ended 30 June 201 6. The corporate governance statement is current as
at 30 June 2016 and has been approved by the Board,

Composition of the Board

The Board comprises 4 Directors, 2 of whom (including the Chair) are non-executive and meet the Board’s
eriteria to be considered independent. The names of the non-executive/independent Directors are;

Raobert A Broombield Mon-Executive Chairman
Jacobus J Landsberg Non-Executive Director

An independent Direetor is a non-execulive Director who is not a member of management and who s free of
any business or other relationship that could materially interfere with, or could reasonable be perceived to
materially interfere with, the independent exercise of their judgment. Tor a Director to be considered
independent, they must meet all ol the ollowing matenality thresholds;
- not hold, either directly or indirectly through a related person or entity, more than 10% of the
company s outslanding shares;
- not benefit, either directly or through a related person or enlity, [rom any sales o ar purchases from the
company or any of its related entities; and
- denve no ineome, cither dircetly or indireetly through a related person or entity, from a contract with the
company or any of its related entities,

Aocomplete listing of the Board's Directors for the vear ended 30 June 2016, along with their biographical
details, is provided in the Directors’ report,

The Board considers that the current Board compaosition reflects an appropriate balance between execulive and
non-gxecutive Directors that promotes both the generation of shareholder value and effective governance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONT.)

The Board also considers that the current Board composition reflects an appropriate balance of skills, expertise
and experience to achieve its objective of creating and delivering long-term shareholder value. The diverse
range ol business activities the company is involved in nccessitates the Board having a correspondingly diverse
range of skills, experience and expertise. As security access control constitutes a significant part of the
company’'s averall operations, Directors are required to have detailed knowledge and understanding of this
industry. Nevertheless, Directors need to have a strong understanding of a range of other areas, including
finance, contract law and occupational health and safety requirements,

Although the Board considers its current composition to be appropriate, it has in place an aclive program lor
assessing whether individual Dircetors and the Board as a whole have the skills and knowledge necessary ta
discharge their responsibilities in accordance with the Board’s governance arrangements. Any deliciencies
identified by this program cen be addressed in a number of ways, including training and the employment of
specialist stall, Details of the skills, expertise and expericnce of cach Director are provided in the Directors’
report,

Ethical Standards
The Board is committed to its core governance values of integrity, respect, trust and openness among and
between Board members, management, employees, customers and suppliers, These values are enshrined in the
Board’s Code of Conduct policy,
The Code of Conduct policy requires all Dircelors, management and employees o al all fimes:

- act honestly and in good faith;

- exercise due care and diligence in fulfilling the functions of office;

- avoid conflicts and make full disclosure of any possible conflict of interest;

- comply with both the letter and spirit of the law;

- eneourage the reporting and investigation of unlawlul and unethical behaviour; and

- comply with the share trading policy outlined in the Corporate Governance policy,

Directors are obliged to be independent in judgment and ensure all reasonable steps are taken to ensure that the
Board's core governance values are not compromised in any decisions the Board malkes.

Diversity Policy

Diversity includes, but is not Hmited to, gender, age, cthnicily and cultural background. The company is
committed to diversity and recognises the benefits arising from employee and Board diversity and the
importance of benefiting from all available talent.

Share Ownership and Share Trading Policy

The Board's policy regarding Directors and employees trading in MaxSec Group Limited shares is set under the
Corporate Governance Policy,  The policy restricts Directors and emplovess from acting on malerial
information until it has been released 1o the markel and adequate time has been given for this to be reflected in
the company’s share price. A detailed description of the Board’s policy regarding Directors and employees
trading in MaxSec Group Limited shares is available from the Corporate Governance policy,

Diirectors and key management personnel (KMP) are prohibited from limiting risk attached to incentives paid in
the form of options or rights by use of derivatives or other means. Further information on the Board’s policy
regarding the use of hedging arrangements by Directors over MaxSec Group Limited shares is provided in the
remuneration report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONT.)

Audit Committee
The role of the audit comumittee is to assist the Board in monitoring the processes and controls associated with
the financial reporting [unction that ensure the integrity of the company’s financial statements. Specifically, the
audil committee oversees:

- the appoiniment, independence, perlormance and remuneration of the external auditor;

- theintegrity of the audit process;

- the effectivencss ol the iternal controls; and

- compliance with applicable regulatory requirements.

The audit committee comprises 2 Directors (including the Chair of the Board), all of whom are non-
executive/independent Directors.  Consistent with the ASX's Corporate Governance Principles and
Recommendations (3™ edition), the Chair of the audit committee is independent and does not hold the posilion
of Chair of the Board.

The names and qualifications of the audit committee members and their attendance al meetings of the committee
are included in the Dircelors’ report,

Board Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for creating and delivering sharcholder value through governance
of the company's business activities., The discharge of these responsibilities is facilitated by the Board
delivering to shareholders timely and balanced disclosures about the company s performance.

As a part of its corporate governance arrangements, the Board has established a sirategy for enpaging and
communicating with sharcholders that includes:

- regular meetings with institutional shareholders;
- quarterly reporting 1o all sharcholders; and
- actively encouraging shareholders to attend and participate in the company’s Annual General Meeting.

The Board is first and foremost accountable to provide value to its shareholders through delivery of timely and
balanced disclosures. The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring its actions are in accordance with key
corporate governance principles,

The Board has delegated 1o the Chicf Excecutive Officer (CEQ), Geoffrey J Cleaves, all authorities appropriate
and necessary to achieve the Board's objective to create and deliver long-lerm sharcholder wvalue.
Motwithstanding these delegations of authornity by the Board. the CEO remains accountable to the Board for the
authority delegated to him and for the performance of the company’s business activities at all times. As noted
ahove, the Board regularly monitors the decisions and actions of the CEQ as well as the performance of the
company’s business activities,

A key plank of the Board Corporate Governance policy is the requirement for all Directors to demonstrate
honesty, integrity, and preparedness to eritically evaluate all aspects of the company’s operations. Inherent in all
of this is the expectation that Directors;

- commil the necessary lime and energy 1o [ulfill their responsibilities as Directors; and

- place the interests of the company before their personal interests.



[0 e = o o e s e Sy TR
MaxSec Group Limited - Annual Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONT,)

The Chair is responsible for ensuring individual Directars, the Board as a whole and KM comply with bolh the
letter and spiril of the Board s governance arrangements, The Chair discharges their responsibilities in a number
ol ways, primarily through:

- setting agendas in collaboration with other Directors and KMI;

- enecouraging critical evaluation and debate among Directors:

- managing Board mectings 1o ensure that all eritical matters are given sullicient attention; and

- communicating with stakeholders as and when required.

Independent Directors have the right to seek independent professional advice on any matter connected with the
discharge of their responsibilitics as Directors at the company’s expense.  Wrillen approval must be obtained
from the Chair prior to incurring any expensc on behall of the company,

Sharcholder Rights and Investors Relations

Shareholders are entitled to vote on significant matters impacting on the bhusiness, which include the election
and remuneration of Dircctors, changes to the constitution and receipt of annual and interim Anancial
stalements, The Board actively encourages sharcholders to attend and participate in the Annual General
MWeetings of MaxSec Group Limited, to lodge questions to be responded by the Board and/or the CEOQ, and are
able Lo appoint proxies,

Risk Management

The company does not have a risk committee. However, the Board is entrusted with the identification and
management of key risks associated with the business that are vital to creating and delivering long-tenm
sharcholder value,

The Board is not aware ol any material exposure to economic, environmental or social sustainability risks 1o
which the company may be subject.

ASX Corporate Governance Principles

The Directors of MaxSce Group Lid support the principles of the ASX Corporate Governance Guidelines, To
date, due to the size of the company the Board has nol formally adopted all policies or guidelines required for
compliance with the ASX s guidelines.

Principle 1 — Lay Sound Foundations for Management and Oversight
The Board has adepled a corporate governance policy which sets oul clear guidelines o ensure proper
management and control over the aftairs of the company

Principle 2 — Structure the Board to Add Yalue

The Board currently includes two independent Directors, one of whom is the Chairman, Inlormation on the
experience and competencies are included in the Annual Report,  The company will seek to establish a
remuneration committee, which due to the company's size has not as yet been done.

Principle 3 — Promaote Ethical and Responsible Decision-Making

The corporale govermance policy ensures Ethical and Responsible Decision making through formal processes
and delegated authorities.

10
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONT.)

Principle 4 — Safeguard Integrity in Financial Reporting

An audil commitlee was established on 4 June 2003 being made up of the non-executive members ol the Board,
The structure consists of enly non-executive Directors who are independent and the chairman is net chairman of
the Board.

Principle 5 — Make Timely and Balanced Disclosure
The Directors have always adhered to the principles of continuous disclosure, Written policics and procedures
designed to ensure compliance have been mtroduced during the year and will be continually reviewed.

Principle 6 — Respect the Rights of Sharcholders

The company believes that it adequately communicates relevant information to all shareholders on a timely
hasis. The company encourages shareholder participation at shareholder mectings, The external auditor is
requested to attend the annual general meeling lo answer sharcholders” questions about the conduet of the audit
and the preparation and content of the auditor’s report.

Principle 7 — Recognise and Manage Risk

The Directors are aware ol the need 1o identify and manage risk, no formal policies or procedures have been
cstablished o date, given the size of the company. The chief executive oftficer and the chiel linancial officer (or
equivalent) should state to the Board in writing that the stalement given in accordance with best practice
concerning the integrity of the [inancial statements and is founded on a sound system of risk management and
internal compliance and controls which implement the policies adopted by the Board; the statement also should
confirm that the company s risk management and internal compliance and control system is operating efficiently
and effectively in all material respects.

Principle 8 — Encourage Enhanced Performance
Formal performance evaluation criteria and processes will be established in the tuture. Given the current size
and dircction of the company this was not formally introduced during the year,

Principle 9 — Remunerate Fairly and Responsibly

Remuneration of the Company’s Directors has been disclosed in the Annual Report. Due to its size no fonmal
structure for the remuneration of Directors has heen established as yet but the company plans Lo do so when

appropriate.

Principle 10 — Recognise the Legitimate Interests of Stakeholders
The Directors recognize the importance of compliance with legal and other obligations. The Directors believe
they, together with their advisors, have the necessary experience to ensure these interests arc protected.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors present their reporl on the consolidated entity (referred to herein as the Group) consisting of
MaxSee Group Limited and its controlled entities for the [inancial vear ended 30 June 2016, The information in
the preceding operating and [inancial review forms part of this directors’ report for the financial year ended 30
June 2016 and is to be read in conjunction with the following information:

Crencral Information

Directors

The following persons were dircclors of MaxSec Group Limited during or since the end of the financial year up
to the date of this report:

Robert Andrew Broomtield Chairman

Geoflrey John Cleaves - Chief Iixecutive OlTicer

Christopher Feraus Executive Director (appointed on & Tune 2016}
Jacobus J (Johan) Landsherg  — Mon-Exceutive Director

Particulars of each director’s experience and qualifications are set out later in this report,

Dividends Paid or Recommended
No dividends have been paid or declared since the end of the previous financial vear.

Indemnifying Officers or Auditors

Dwuring the linancial year the Company has paid insurance premiums to insure certain officers of the Company.
Ofticers of the Company include the Company's Directors and secretaries. The liabilities insured include costs
and expenses that may be incurred in defending civil or eriminal proceedings that may be brought against the
officers in their capacity as officers of the Company or related body corporate, other than conduct involving a
willful breach of duty in relation to the Company,

Proceedings on Behalf of the Company

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any
proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company
tor all or any part of those proceedings,

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

Non-audit Services

The Board of Directors, in accordance with advice from the audit committee, is satistied that the provision of
non-audit services during the year is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed
by the Corporations Act 2001, The Directors are satisfied that the services disclosed below did nol compromise
the external auditor’s independence for the following reasons:

- all non-audit services are reviewed and approved by the audit committee prior to commencement (o
ensure they do not adversely affect the integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and

- the nature ol the services provided does not compromise the general principles relating to auditor
independence in accordance with APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants set by the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board,

The following fees were paid or payable 1o Wong & Mayes for non-audit services during the vear ended 30 June
2016:

b
Taxation services 23.960
Taotal 23,960
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONT.)

Auditor’s Independence Declaration
The lead auditor's independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2016 has been received and can be
found on page 19 of the financial report,

Options

Al the date of this repart. the unissued ordinary shares of MaxSec Group Limited under option are as follows:
Girant Date Date of Expiry Exercise Price Number under Cption
03112011 31412:2017 FO.030 £, 700,000
190352015 19052020 $0.025 fr, SO0,
ITF02:2016 310022020 0,030 800,000

27,200,000

Option holders do not have any rights Lo participate in any issues of shares or other interests of the company or
any other entity.

There have been no options granted over unissued shares or interests of any controlled entity within the Group
during or since the end of the reporting period.

For details of oplions issucd 1o dircetors and exccutives as remuneration, refer to the remuneration report.

During the yvear ended 30 June 2016, the following ordinary shares of MaxSec Giroup Limited were issued on
the exercise of options granted.

Grant Date Exercise Price Number of shares issued
Pandon Holdings Pre Lid Da0720049 B0.020 1,000,000

No person entitled to exercise the option had or has any right by virtue of the oplion Lo participate in any share
issuc of any other body corporate,

Information Relating to Directors and Company Secretary

Mr. Robert Andrew Broomfield, Chairman
Mr. Robert Broomfield is a business executive with more than 20 years of management experience, including
the pust 18 years in senior pasitions within companics operating in the security industry.

Mr. Broomfield is currently the CEO and Executive Direclor of sceurity lechnology company Future Fibre
Technologies Lid (FFT), which has achieved significant success and is now rated as the world's leading
manufacturer of Fibre Optic based Intrusion Detection Systems,

Prior to joining FFT he was with Vision Systems Ltd, where he served as the General Manager ol Asia Pacilic
for their Fire and Security systems.

In addition to his international sales and marketing success, Mr. Broomfield has extensive experience in
operations management, including product engineering, procurement, manulseluring and operations. Ie has
previously had 10 years' experience with TBM in Australia and the United States,

Mr. Broomfield joined the MSP Board on § October 2010 and holds no pesitions on Boards of other Australian
listed companies other than TTT.
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DIRECTORS” REPORT (CONT.)

My, Geoffrey John Cleaves, Chict Excecutive Officer

Mr. Geoffrey Cleaves has over 25 years’ experience in finance and operations management within the property,
media, print. manufacturing, oil and gas and investment sectors, last 200 years in senior management positions
with bath listed and unlisted corporations,

During Mr. Cleaves’ career he has held senior management positions with organisations such as Stockland
Group, Chasc Corporation, Milton Corporation, Trafalgar Corporate Group, Australian Petroleum Fund and the
Independent Print Media Group.

Mr. Cleaves is a professional manager and his core competencies include gencral management, investment,
asset and funds management, treasury and Onance.

Mr, Cleaves” highest educational qualification is a Master degree in Professional Accounting, he also holds the
tollowing professional designations: FIPA and SA Fin.

Mr, Cleaves joined the MSI® Board on 5 October 2010 and holds no positions on Boards of other Australian
listed companies.

Mr. Christopher Fereus, Exccutive DHrector

Mr. Christopher Fergus is the Executive Director and SVP Strategy and Business Development, as well as the
CFEQ of the secure logistics division, Ava Global and has over 20 vears of global experience within the security
industry, Based in Dubai, Mr, Fergus is a UK national and previously worked for the FTSE 100 and world's
leading security services provider, G438, Joining the company as a graduale trainee in 1994, he worked across 4
mumber of continenls, mosl recently as Regional Managing Director, Middle East, managing a significant
portfolio of Security & FM joint ventures.

Mr. Fergus has a wealth of commercial and business development experience and has extensive general
management experience within the securly integralion and services scelors,

Mr, Fergus joined MaxSec in March 2016 and joined the board in June 2016 and holds no other board positions.
Mr. Jacobus J (Johan) Landsbery, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Johan Landshera was born in 1969 in South Africa. He served as an Officer in the South African Defence
Foree hefore starting his professional career in the services industry.

Mr, Landsberg holds qualifications in Business Management and Marketing as well as various safety and
security related certifications,

Mr, Landsberg was previously a senior executive of MaxSec Group Limited and holds both a good
understanding of the Company’s history and a wealth of experience gained in the industry.

Mr. Landsherg migrated to Australia in 1999, He joined the security indusiry as a senior executive in various
capacities in the successful implementation of large technology deployments in Australia, He has broad
experience in related areas including distribution, contract, and risk management. Mr. Landsberg was also
engaged until late 2014 by the public sector Lo provide commercial and technical guidance on the deployment of
technologies in large scale implementations which included the implementation of new lransport ticketing
system on rail in NSW.

Mr. Landsberg is currently the Group General Manager of a privately owned Group of Companies and is
responsible for the strategic and commercial dircetion of this Group globally,

Mr. Landsberg joined the MSP Board on 6 May 2010 and holds no positions on Boards of other Australian
listed companies.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONT.)

Company Secretaries
The following persons held the position of company secretary st the end of the financial year:

Mr. Jared Pearson CA, BCom is a Chartered Accountant, who was appointed on 29 July 2015, He has been
involved in public practice for 12 vears and has considerable experience in accounting, taxation law and
business praclices,

Mr. Geoffrey John Cleaves MPA, FIPA, SAFIN is a Company Secretary, who was appointed on 30 July 2010
He has broad experience in corporate finance & accounting and commercial and [unds management.

Interests in the Shares and Options of the Company and Related Bodies Corporate
As at the date of this repart, the interests of the Directors in the shares and options of MaxSec Group Limited
were!

Options over

(hrdinary Shares Ordinary Shares
Robert A Broomfield 2500000 [EAERPIHI]
Creotfrey 1 Cleaves - 3,00, G0
Christopher Feraus 120080, 00 #
Tacobus T Landsberg - S0, 000

Mecectings of Directors
During the financial year, 16 meetings of Directors (including audit committees) were held. Allendances by
each Director during the year were as follows:

Director's Meetings Audit Committee Meetings
Number eligible to attend / (Numbcer attended):
Robert A Broomiicld 137(13) ERRY
Geoffrev ] Cleaves 124(12) 04
Christopher Uergus Lif 1) 04
Tacobus | Landsberg 137(13) ERRY
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REMUNERATION REPORT

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of MaxSce Group Limited has been designed to align key management personnel
(KMP) ohjectives with shareholder and business objectives by providing a fixed remuneration component and
offering specific long-term incentives based on key performance areas affecting the economic entity’s financial
results. The Board of MaxSec Group Limited believes the remuneration policy 1o he appropriate and effective in
its ability to attract and retain high-quality KMP (o run and manage the consolidated group, as well as create
ooal congruence between direetors, exceulives and shareholders.

The Board’s policy for determining the nalure and amount of remuneration for Board members of the economic

entily is as [ollows:

- All KMP receive a hase salary (which is based on factors such as length of service and expericnce),
superannuation, fringe benefits, options and performance incentives.

- Performance incentives are generally only paid once predetermined key performance indicalors (KPIs)
have been met.

- Incentives paid in the form of options or rights are intended to align the interests of the dircctors and
company with those of the shareholders. [n this regard, KMP are prohibited from limiting risk attached to
those instruments by use of derivatives or other means.

The performance of KMP is measurcd against criteria agreed annually with cach executive and is
based predominantly on the forecast growth of the consolidated group’s profits and shareholders’
value. All bonuses and incentives must be linked to predetermined performance criteria. The Board
may., however, exercise its discretion in relation to approving incentives, bonuses and options, and can
recommend changes to the committee’s recommendations, Any change must be justified by reference
to measurable performance criteria. The policy is designed to attract the highest calibre ol executives
and reward them for performance results leading to long-term growth in sharcholder wealth.

KMP receive, at a minimum. a superannuation guarantec contribution required by the government,
which is currently 9.5% of the individual's average weekly ordinary time earnings (AWOTE).

Performance-based Remuneration

K. Pls are set annually, with a certain level of consultation with KMP, The measures arc specifically tailored to
the area each individual is involved in and has a level of control over. The KPIs target areas the Board believes
hold greater potential for group expansion and profit, covering financial and non-financial as well as short and
long-term goals. The level set for each KI'1 15 based on budgeted figures for the Group and respective industry
standards.

Performance in relation to the KPls is assessed annually, with bonuses being awarded depending on the number
and deemed difficulty of the KPIs achicved. Following the assessment, the KPIs are reviewed by the
remuneration commiltee in light of the desired and actual outcomes, and their efficiency is assessed in relation
to the Group's goals and shareholder wealth, before the KPIs arc set for the following year.

Relationship between Remuneration Policy and Company Performance

The remuneration policy has been tailored to increase goal congruence belween shareholders, directors and
excculives. Two methods have been applied to achieve this aim, the first being a performance-based bonus
hased on KPIs, and the second being the 1ssuc of options to the majority of direclors and executives to
encourage the alignment of personal and shareholder interests. The company belicves this policy was effective
in increasing shareholder wealth,
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REMUNERATION REPORT (CONT.)

Performance Conditions Linked to Remuneration

The Group secks 1o emphasise reward meentives Tor resulls and continued commitment to the Group through
the provision of various cash bonus reward schemes, specifically the incorporation of incentive payments based
on the achievement of revenue targets, return on equity ratios, and continued employment with the Group, This
condition provides management with a performance target which [ocuses upon organic sales growth utilising
existing group resources.

The performance-related proportions of remuneration based on these targets are included in the Tollowing table,
The objective of the reward schemes is to both reinforee the short and long-term goals of the Group and provide
a common interest between managemenl and sharcholders. There has been no alteration to the terms of the
honuses paid since grant date,

The satisfaction of the performance conditions is based on a review of the audited Onancial statements of the
Group and publicly available market indices, as such Ggures reduce any risk of contention relating to payment
cligibility. The Board does not believe thal performance conditions should include a comparison with any other
measures or factors external to the Group at this time.

Employment Details of Members of Key Management Personnel

The remuneration policy has heen tailored to increase goal congruence between shareholders and Directors. The
method applied in achieving this aim, being the issue of options to the majority ol Direelors 1o encourage the
alignment of personal and sharcholder interests,

Details of the nature gnd amount of each major element of the remuneration of each Direetor of the Company
are as follows:

2016 Salary/fees Other benefits  Options issued  Superannuation Tuotal
Dircctors-Non executive by b b b 5
Rabert A Broomfield 27.397 - 3,323 2,603 35323
Tacobus T Tandsherg 27,307 & 2,602 2,603 32662
Directors-Executive
Geoffrey J Cleaves 230,554 - 26,627 21,904 279,127
Christopher Fergus 19,622 [ 3,600 - 2,452 35 680

2015 Salary/fees Other benefits  Options issued  Superannuation Total
Directors-Non execulive % % % b %
Raohert A Broomficld 37,397 - - 2603 30,000
Tacobus T Landsbhery 27.397 - - 2,603 30,000
Directors-Executive
Geotfrey T Cleaves 152 648 - - 17,352 200,00
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REMUNERATION REPORT (CONT.)

Options and Rights Granted as Remuncration

Metails of the options granted as remuneration Lo those KMP lisied in the previous table are as follows:

Value per Amount Paid/
Option at Grant  Payable by
Entitlement on Drates Fxercise Price Date Recipient
Grant Date Issuer Excreise Exercizsable b 5 b
19052015 MaxSec Group Limited  Ordinary Share  19/05/2020 0025 0.0090

Option values at grant date were deternuned using the Black-5choles method,

Securitics Received that Are Not Performance-related
No members of KMP are entitled to receive securities that are performance-based as part of their remuneration

package.

EMP Shareholdings
['he number of ordinary shares in MaxSec Group Limited held by each KMP of the Group during the financial
vear is as follows:

Granted as Issued on Exercise
Balance ait Remuneration of Options during  Other Changes  Balance al Fnd of
Beginning of Year  during the Year the Year during the Year Year
Raobert A Broomticld 2500000 - 5 4 2,500,000
Christopher Fergus 12,0000, 0 - - - 12,000,000
14,500,000 - - - 14,500,000

Other Equity-related KMP Transactions
There have been no other transactions involving equity instruments other than those deseribed in the tables
above relating to options, rights and shareholdings.

KMP Loans Exceeding $100,000
There have been no loans made to KMP.

Other Transactions with KMP and/or their Related Partics

There were no other transactions conducted between the Group and KMP or their related partics, other than
those disclosed above relating to equity, compensation and loans, that were condueled other than in accordance
with normal employee, customer or supplier relationships on lerms no more favourable than those reasonably
expected under arm’s length dealings with unrelated persons.

This directors’ report, incorporating the remuneration report, is signed in accordance with a resolution of the
Board ol Dircclors,

Geottrey J Cleaves
CEO and Director
Sydney, 27" September 2016
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WONG & MAYEE AUDITPTY LTD Lo 16 20D ENT ETREET

CHARTERED ADCOLMTAMNTS SYDNEY, N8 W, 2000

f i 1B 533
AR INR PO 30K Hikg
ALETRALIL SALARE BYONEY 1215

TELEFHONE' [02] 5245 J8300
FACEINMILE: [0Z) 0262 1408

manaEwanamayELCa iy
AW WONOTAYSE, AL A

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
UNDER 5307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

TO THE DIRECTORS OF MAXSEC GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

| declare that, to the best of my knowladga and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2018, there
have been no contraventions of -

1. the auditcr independence requirements as set out In the Corporations Act 2001 in relation
to the audit, and

i any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the gudit.

WONG & MAYES AUDIT PTY LIMITED
Chartered Accountants

[ /LM/Q/K/\I
Silas Chan | Director

Sydney
22 Septamber 2018

Ligbility Bniad Dy & schame apgrevad undar (ne Professionel Standerds Laglsation
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

MNaote Consolidated Group
2016 2013
5 5
Continuing operations
Revenue 1a 4,344,273 5,202,243
Other imcomee Ia 251,576 213,283
Raw materials and consumables used 4 (1,656,787) (2,591,918
Lmplaoyee benefits expense (1,303,094) (1.185.034)
Depreciation and amortisation expense (275,561) (153.036)
Finance cosls (5,118) (3.437)
Orher expenzes (2,745,843) (1L0n8 631}
Profit before income tax {1.390,554) 411,470
Ilncome tax expense - &
Profit from continuing operations (1,3%0,554) 411,470
Discontinued operations
Profiv{ Loss) for the vear from discontinued operalions after tax 2 =
Net Profit fur the vear (1,390.554) 411.470
Other comprehensive income: g -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - g
T'otal comprehensive income for the year (1,391,554} 411470

Prafit atributable to:
Members of the parent entily (1,390,554} 411,470

Mon-controlling interest

(1,391,554) 411470
l'otal comprehensive income artriburable to;
MWembers of the parent endity (1,390,554) 411,470
MNon-controlling interest = :
(1,390,554) 411,470
Earnings per share
From continuing and discontinued operations:
Basic carnings per share (cents) 19 -0.339 cents 0.216 conts

Diluted earnings per share (cents) 19 -1.322 cents 0,195 cents

The geocompanying neles oo part of these Onancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2016

ASSETS

CUREENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
I'tade and ather receivables
Inventories

Oither assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and cquipment
Intangible assels

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Provisions

TOTAL CUEREENT LIABILITIES
SNON-CURRENT LIABILITTES
Provisions

TOTAL NON-CURRELENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

lssued capital

Reserves

Retained earnings/{accumulated losses)
Parent mterest

Non-controelling inlerest

TOTAL EQUITY

Mote

LT - = |

11

13
14

14

16

Consolidated Group

2016 2015
% b
4,967 862 681,621
1770, 706 2,176,711
1042, 706 ATH,513
117,145 94,333
7,898,419 3,631,178
104,580 £3.801
2,148,563 1,892 978
2,253,143 1,936,779
10,151,562 5,787,957
1015,038 1,566,831

159,438 171,566
1,174,476 1,738,397
53,663 43,656

53,663 43,656
1,228,139 1,782,053
8,023,423 4,005,904
6o 857,281 b, 7ol 108
24,626,427 24414434
(82,560,284) (81,169,728)
8,923,423 4,005,904
8,423,423 4,005,904

The seeompanyving notes farm pust of these finencial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Balance at 1 July 2014

Comprehensive income

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the
vear

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Transactions with owners, in their
capacity as owners, and other
transfers

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Dividends recognised for the year
Share issued during the vear

Total transactions with owners and
other transfers

(Mher
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Total other

Balance at 30 June 2015

Balance at 1 July 2015

Comprehensive income

Profit tor the year

Other comprehensive income for the
year

Total comprehensive income for the
yedr

Nl

Shore Capital Share Based Capital Profit Forvign Retained  Toral Equity
Fxpenses Reserves Currency Earmings
Reserve Translarion
Rueserves
5 3 5 % b 5
A07elI98 23,278,902 1031042 (7008 (81581200 1ARD3IT
- 411,470 411,470
- - = 411470 411470
- | 14058 MR
- 1140155 - 114,088
ni, 6l 108 202 e 02 051,042 TUGA%) (5], 169,730 4.005 904
Al 761108 2327602 131,042 649 (1.164,730) 400304
- - - - (LA90554) (1, M0,554)
- - - - {LAMSES) (1,390,554)
22
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONT.)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Transactions with owners. in their
capacity as owners, and other
transfers

Shares ssued during the vear
Shares hased payvment
Dividends recognised for the vear

Total transactions with owners and
ather transfers

Other

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Total other

Balance at 30 June 2016

Mute

Shure Cupital Shure Based Capital Profit  Foreign Retained  Total Eguity

Fxpenses Heserves Currency Earnings

Reserve Transkation
Heserves

% b 5 b3 b %
[T e - - - - 196,042
- 59,722 = - - 096,042
195,082 59,722 - - - o, (146,042,
- L - 152,270 - {132,270
- - - 153,270 - (152,270
A 457280 33.336.624 1AL, 42 254,701 (R2.560,284) S..923-..=_l_2__3-__

The aecompanying notes Bimn part ol these Noancial statamnents,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Maote Consolidated Group
2016 2015
b 4
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 4,763,768 1,638,951
Crher Receipls 3a 207,924 213,283
Payments to supplicrs and employves (6,272,393) (3,888,534)
Interest received 3a 3,16l 41,737
I'inance costs (5.118) {5,437
Income tax paid - -
Mol cash provided by (used 1n) operaling activities 22 - (1,275,6058) =
CASH FLOWS FROM [INVESTING ACTIVITILS a .
Payments for product development expenses (492,300} {283,971
Murchase of property. plant and equipment (31,769 (32,690
Patent Registration (907 (3.561)
Loan o related parties — pavment made s =
Met cash used in investing activilies (54‘_1?9T§‘.| (325,2220)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds [rom issue of shares 0,485,105 3
Payment tor capital raising (363,910) -
et cash provided by {uscd in) financing activities 0,121,189 -
Met increase in cash held 4,300,555 (325222)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial vear 681,621 [054,147
Exchange Adjustment {14?3_1_%_) (47.304)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial vear 4,967,862 681,621

I'he wecompanying netes form part of these Gneecial slalements,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These consolidated financial statements and notes represent those of MaxSec Group Limited and Controlled
Fntities (the “consolidated group™ or “Group™).

The separate financial statements of the parent entity, MaxSec Group Limiled, have not been presented within
this financial report as permitted by the Corparaiions et 2001,

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 22™ September 2016 by the Directors of the company.

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

These general purpose [inaneial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The
Group is a for-profit entity for fnancial reporling purposes under Australisn Accounting Standards. Material
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and have been
consistently applied unless stated otherwise,

Except for cash [ow information, the fnancial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are
based on historical costs, moditied, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current
assets, financial assets and financial labilities.

a. Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate all of the assets, liahilities and results of the parent
{MaxSec Group Limited) and all of the subsidiaries {including any structured entities), Subsidiarics are
entities the parent controls. The parent controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability (o affeet those returns through its power
over the entity, A list of the subsidiaries is provided in Note 10

The assets, liabilities and results of all subsidiaries are fully consolidated into the financial statements ol
the Group from the date on which control is obtained by the Group. The consolidation of a subsidiary 1s
discontinued from the date that control ceases. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gaing
or losses on lransactions between group entities are fully climinated on consolidation. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed and adjustments made where necessary to ensure uniformity of
the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Fguity interests in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly. to the Group are presented as “non-
controlling interests”. The Group initially recognises non-controlling intercsts that are present ownership
interests - subsidigries and are enlitled o g proportionale share of the subsidiary’s net assets on
liquidation at either fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, non-controlling interests are attributed (heir share of prolil or
loss and each component of other comprehensive income. Non-controlling interests are shown separately
within the equity section of the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income,
Business combinations

Business combinations occur where an acquirer obtains control over one or more businesses,

A business combination is accounted for by applying the acquisition method, unless it is a combination
involving entities or husinesses under common control. The business combination will be accounted [or
from the date that control is attained, whereby the fair value of the identiliable assets acquired and
liabilities (including contingent liabilities) assumed is recognised (subject to certain limited exemptions).
When measuring the consideration transferred in the business combination, any assel or lability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement is also ineluded. Subseguent Lo initial recognition,
contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is remeasurcd cach reporting
period to fair value, recognising any change to fair value in profit or loss, unless the change in value can
be identified as existing at acquisition date.

All transaction costs incurred in relation to the business combination are expensed to the statement of
comprehensive income when incurred.

[
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The acquisition of a business may result in the recognition of goodwill or a gain from a bargain purchase.
Goodwill

Goodwill is carmied at cost less accumulated impaimment losses, Goodwill is caleulated as the excess of
the sum of

1 the consideration transferred;

ii any non-controlling interest (determined under either the full goodwill or proportionate interest
methad); and

11 the acquisition date fair value ol any previously held equity interest;
over the acquisition date fair value of net identifiable assets acquired,

The acquisition date fair value of the consideration transferred for a business combination plus the
acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest shall form the cost of the investment in
the separale nancial stalcments.

Fair value remeasurements in any pre-existing eguity holdings are recognized in proflil or loss o the
period in which they anse. Where changes in the wvalue of such cquity holdings had previously heen
recognised in other comprehensive income, such amounts are recycled to profit or loss.

The amount of goodwill recognised on acquisilion of gach subsidiary in which the Group holds less than a
100% interest will depend on the methad adopted in measuring the non-controlling interest. The Group
can elect in most circumstances to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
ffull goodwill methed) or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the subsidiary's
identifiable net asscls (proportionate interesi method). In such circumstances, the Group determines
which method to adopt tor each acquisition and this is stated in the respective notes to these [inancial
statements disclosing the business combination,

Under the full goodwill method, the fair value of the non-controlling interest is determined using
valuation techniques which make the maximum use of market information where available. Under this
method, goodwill attributable to the non-controlling inlerests is recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of
associates is included in investments in associates.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units or
CGiroups of cash-generating units, representing the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored being not
larger than an operating scgment, Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill related to the entity disposed of
Changes in the ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not resull in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions and do not affect the carrying amounts of goodwill.

b Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities
The Group measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value on either a recurring or non-récurning
basis, depending on the requirements of the applicable Accounting Standard.
Fair value is the price the Group would receive to sell an asset or would have to pay (o transler a lability
in an orderly {ic unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable and willing market
participants at the measurement date.
As fair value is 8 markel-based measure, Lhe closest equivalent observable markel pricing information is
used 1o determine fair value, Adjusiments to market values may be made having regard to the
characteristics of the specitic asset or liability. The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded
in an active market are determined using one or more valuation techniques, These valuation techmques
maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data,

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market [or the assel or
liability (i¢ the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the assel or liability) or, in the
absence of such a market, the most advantageous markel available to the entity at the end of the reporting
period (ie the market that maximises the receipts from the sale of the asset or minimises the payments
mide to transler the lability, afler taking into account transaction costs and transport costs).

For non-Tfinancial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a markel participant’s ability
to use the assel in ils highest and best use or to sell it to another market participant that would wse the
asset in its highest and best use.

2
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d.

The fair value of liahilities and the entity’s own equity instruments (excluding those related to share-
based payment arrangements) may be valued, where there is no observable market price in relation to the
transfer of such financial instruments, by relerence to observable market information where such
instruments are held as assets. Where this information is not available, other valuation techniques are
adopted and. where significant, are detailed in the respectivie note Lo the financial statements,

Inventorics

Inventorics are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of assembled products
includes direct materials costs plus any costs associated with the outsourcing of the assembly process.

Plant and Equipment

Plant and cquipment are measured on the cost basis and therefore carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment. In the event the carrying amount of plant and equipment is
greater than the estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is writlen down immediately to the
estimated recoverable amount and impainment losses are recognised either in profit or loss or as a
revaluation decrease il the impairment losses relale to a revalued asset. A formal assessment of
recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are present (refer (o0 Note 1{e) tor details of
impairment).

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by dircctors 10 ensure it is not In excess
of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the
expected net cash Aows that will be received [rom the asset’s employment and subsequent disposal. The
expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in delermining recoverable amounts.
The cost of fxed assets constructed within the consolidated group includes the cost of materials. direct
labour, horeowing costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and varable overheads,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recogniscd as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associaled with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as expenses in profit or loss during the financial period in which they arc incurred.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings and capitalised lease assets, but excluding
freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assct’s useful life to the consolidated group
commeneing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over
the shorter of either the unexpired perind of the lease or the estimated usciul lives of the improvements.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

Class of Fixed Assct Depreciation Rate

Plant and equipment 10-30%;

The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted il appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset's carrving amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimaled recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These
gains and losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income, When revalued assets are sold.
amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

Impairment of Assets

Al the end of each reparting period, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. The assessment will include the consideration of external and internal sources of information
including dividends received from subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities deemed to be out
of pre-acquisition profits, If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried oul on the asset by
comparing the recoverahle amount of the asset, being the higher of the assel’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use, to the asset’s carrying amount., Any excess of the asset’s carrying amount over its
recoverable amounlt is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is camied atl a revalued
amount in accordance with another Standard (eg in accordance with the revaluation model in AASB 1 16:
Property, Plant and Equipment). Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation
decreasce in accordance with that other Standard.
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Where il 15 not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unil e which the asset belongs,
[mpairment testing is performed annually for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lves.
Leases
I.eases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and henefits incidental to the ownership of the
asaet, but not the legal ownership that is transterred to entities in the consolidated group, are classilied as
finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised by recognising an asset and a Hability at the lower of the amounts equal 1o
the fair value ol the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any
guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and
the lease interest expense for the period.
Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the
lease term.
[.ease pavments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor,
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
I.ease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straighl-line basis
over the lease tenn.
Intangibles other than Goodwill
Patents and trademarks
Patents and trademarks are recognised at cost of acquisition. Patents and trademarks have a fnite life and
are cartied at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. Patents and trademarks
are amortised over their useful life.
Research and development
Expenditure during the research phase of a project is recognised as an expense when incurred. Product
development costs are capitalised onlv when technical feasibility studies identify that the product is
expected Lo deliver future economic benelits and these benelits can be measured reliably.
Capitalised development costs have a finite useful lite and are amortised on a svstematic basis based on
the [uture ceonormic benelilts over the uselul Life ol the projeet,
Forcign Currency Transactions and Balances
Functional and presentation currency
The lunctional currency of cach of the Group's entilics is measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which that entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Australian dollars which is the parent entity’s functional and presentalion currency,
Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into lunctional eurrency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the year-end exchange
rate. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost continue to be carried al the exchange rate at (he
date of the transaction. Non-monelary items measured at fair value arce reported at the exchange rate at the
date when fair values were determined,
Exchange differences ansing on the translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss, except
where deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedge.
Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary ilems are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income 10 the exlent that the underlyving gain or loss 1s recognised in other comprehensive
income; otherwise the exchange difference is recognised in protit or loss,
Group companies
The financial results and position of foreign operations, whose functional currency s different from the
Group’s presentation currency, are translated as follows:
—  assels and labilities are lranslated at exchange rates prevailing al the end of the reporting period;
income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the period; and
retained carnings are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.
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Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations with functional currencies other than
Australian dollars are recognised in other comprehensive income and included in the foreign currency
translation reserve in the statement of financial position. The cumulative amount of these differences is
reclassified into profit or loss in the period in which the operation is disposed of,

i Employee Benefits

Short-term emplovee benefits

Provision is made for the Group's obligation for short-term employee benefits. Short-term employee
benefits are benefits {other than termination benelits) that are expected to be settled wholly before 12
months alter the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service,
including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-term emplovee benefits arc measured at the {undiscounted}
amounts expected 1o be patd when the obligation is seitled,

The Group’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and sick leave are
recognised as a part of current trade and other payables in the statement of [inancial position. The Group’s
obligations for employees’ annual leave and long service leave entitlements are recognised as provisions
in the statement of financial position.

Other long-term employee benefits

Provision is made for employees’ long service leave and annual leave entitlements not expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees
render the related service. Other long-term employee benelits are measured at the present value of the
expected future payments to be made to employees, Expected future payments incorporale anticipated
future wage and salary levels, durations of service and employee departures and are discounted at rates
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have maturity dates that approximate the terms of the obligations. Any remeasurements for changes in
assumptions of obligations for other long-term employee benefits are recognised in profit or loss in the
periods in which the changes oceur,

The Group's obligations for long-term employee benetits are presented as non-currenl provisions in its
statement of financial position, except where the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months afier the end of the reporting period, in which case the obligations are
presented as current provisions.

1i Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events,
for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably
measured.
Provisions are measured using the besl estimate of the amounts required to sertle the obligation al the end
of the reporting period.

k. Cash and Cash Equivalents
(Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits available on demand with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of 2 months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdralls arc reported within short-lerm borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial
position.

. Revenue and Other Income
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking mio account
any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed. When the inflow of consideration is detferred., it is treated
as the provision of [nancing and is discounted at a rale of interest that is generally accepted in the market
for similar arrangements, The difference between the amount initially recognised and the amount
ultimately received is interest revenue.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point of delivery as this corresponds to the transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and the cessation of all involvement in those
goods.
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method.
Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has been established.
Dividends received from associates and joint venture entities are accounted for in accordance with the
equity method of accounting.
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).
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P

q.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables include amounts due from customers for goods sold and services performed
in the ordinary course of business. Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of
the reporting period are classified as current asscls.  All other receivables are classified as non-current
dusels,

Trade and ather receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the eflective inlerest method, less any provision for impairment.

Trade and Other "ayables

Trade and other payables represent the liabilities tor goods and services received by the entity that remain
unpaid at the end of the reporting period. The balance is recognised as a current liahility with the amounts
normially paid within 30 days of recognition of the lability,

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, exceptl where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Offec (ATO.

Receivahles and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST reccivable or payable. The net
amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables
in the statement of fnancial position,

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activitics which are recoverable from. or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating cash
flows included in receipts from customers or payvments to suppliers.

Comparative Figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes
in presentation for the current HAnancial year.

Where the Group has retrospectively applied an accounting policy, made a retrospective restatement of
items in the financial statements or reclassified items in its financial statements, an additional statement of
financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period will be disclosed.

Government Grant

Government Grants are recognized al [air value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
recetved and all grant conditions will be met.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The directors evaluate estimates and judgments incorporated into the [inancial statements based on
historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of
future events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the
Group.

Key estimates

Imipairment — general

The Group assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions and events
specific to the Group that may he indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant
asscls are reassessed using value-in-use caleulations which incorporate various key assumptions.

New Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods

Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the AASE that are not vet mandatorily applicable 1o
the Group, together with an assessmenl of the potential impact of such pronouncements on the Group
when adopted in future periods, are discussed below:
- AASB 9 Financial Instrwments and associaled Amending Standards (applicable to annual
reporting perinds beginning on or after | January 2018).
The Standard will be applicable retrospectively (subject to the provisions on hedge accounting
outlined below) and includes revised requirements for the classification and measurement of
[imancial instruments, revised recognition and derecognition requirements for financial instruments
and simplified requirements for hedge accounting,
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The key changes that may affect the Group on initial application include certain simplilications 1o
Lthe classilication of Anancial asscts, simplifications to the accounting ol embedded derivatives,
upfront accounting for expected eredit loss, and the irrevocable election to recognise gains and
losses on investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading in other comprehensive
income.  AASB 9 also introduces a new model for hedge accounting that will allow greater
Mexibility in the abilily to hedge risk, particularly with respect o hedges of non-financial items.
Should the entity elect to change its hedge policies in line with the new hedge accounting
requirements of Lthe Standard, the application of such accounting would be largely prospective,

Although the directors anticipate that the adoption of AASB 9 may have an impact on the Group's
financial instruments, including hedging activity, it is impracticable al this stage Lo provide a
reasonable estimate of such impact,

AASB 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers (applicable to annual reporting periods
commencing on or after | January 2017).

When cffective, this Standard will replace the current accounting requirements applicable to
revenue with a single, principles-based model, Except for a limited number ot exceptions,
including leases, the new revenue model in AASB |35 will apply to all contracts with customers as
will as non-monetary exchanges between entities in the same line of business (o facililale salcs to
customers and polential customers,

The core principle of the Standard is thal an entity will recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services Lo cuslomers in an amount thal reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to he entitled in exchange for the goods or services, To achieve this objective. AASB
L5 provides the following Ove-slep process:

identify the contract{s) with a customer;
. identify the performance ohligations in the contractis):
. determine the transaction price;
- allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the conlraci(s); and
- recognise revenue when (or as) the performance obligations are satisfied.
This Standard will require retrospective restatement, as well as enhanced disclosures regarding
revenue.
Although the directors anticipate that the adoption of AASE |5 may have an impact on the Group's
finaneial statements, it is impracticable at this stage to provide a reasonable estimale of such
impact,

- AASE 16: Leases (applicable to annual reporting perinds beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

When effective, this Standard will replace the current accounting requirements applicable to leases
in AASB 117 Leases and related Interpretations, AASB 16 introduces a single lessee accounting
model that eliminates the requirement for leases to be classificd as operating or finance leases.

The main changes introduced by the new Standard include:

- recognition of a right-to-use asset and liability for all leases (excluding short-term leases with
less than 12 months of tenure and leases relating to low-value assets);

- depreciation of right-to-use assets in line with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment in
profit or loss and unwinding of the liability in principal and interest components;

- variahle lease payments that depend on an index or a rate are included in the initial
measurement of the lease liability using the index or rate at the commencement dale;

- by applving a practical expedient, a lessee is permilled 1o elect not to separate non-lease
components and instead account for all components as a lease; and

- additional disclosure requirements.

The transitional provisions of AASE 16 allow a lessee to either retrospectively apply the Standard
to comparatives in line with AASB 108 or recognise the cumulative effect of retrospective
application as an adjustment to opening equity on the date of initial application.

Although the directors anticipate that the adoption of AASB 16 will impact the Group's financial
statements, 1t is impracticable at this stage to provide a reasonable estimate of such impact



e S e e R TIE  m  remese te
MaxSec Group Limited - Annual Report

- AASE 2014-3: Amendmenis fo Australian Accounting Slandards — Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operafions (applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016)

This Standard amends AASE 11: Joint Arrangements to require the acquirar of an interest {both initial and
additional) in a joint operation in which the activity consfitutes a businass. as defined in AASE 3! Businass
Combinations, to apply all of the principles on business combinations accounting in AASE 3 and other
Australian Accounting Slandards except for those principles that conflict with the guidance in AASB 11; and
disclose the information required by AASBE 3 and other Australian Accounting Standards for business
combinations.

The application of AASE 2014-3 will result in a change in accounting policies for the above described
transactions, which were previously accounted for as acquisibions of assets rather than applying the
acquisition method per AASE 3.

The transitional provisions require that the Standard should be applied prospectively to acguisiions of
intzrests in joint operations ocourring on or after 1 January 20016, As al 30 June 2016, management is nat
aware of the axistence of any such arrangements that would impact the financial statements of the entity
going forward and as such is not capable of providing a reasonable estimate at this stage of the impact on
initial application of AASE 2014-3.

- AASE 2014-10: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Sale or Confribufion of Assels between an
Investor and its Assooiale or Joint Venture {applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, as deferred by AASE 2015-10: Amendments fo Ausiralian Accounting Standards - Effective
Date of Amendments fo AASE 10 and AASE 128).

This Standard amends AASE 10: Consalidated Financial Statements with regards to a parent losing control
over a subsidiary that is not a "business” as defined In AASE 3 to an associate or joint venture, and requires
that:

- a gain or loss {including any amaounts in other comprehensive income (3C1)) be recognised only to the
axtent of the unralated investor's interest in that associate or joint venture;

- the remaining gain or loss be eliminated against the carrying amount of the investment in that
associate or joint venture, and

- any gain or loss from remeasuring the remaining investment in the former subsidiary at fair value also
be recognised only to the extent of the unralated investor's interest in the asscciate or joint venturs.
The remaining gain or loss should be aliminated against the carmying amount of the remaining
investment.

The application of AASBE 2014-10 will result in a change in accounting policies for lransactions of loss of
contral over subsidiades (involving an associate or joint venture) that are businesses per AASE 2 for which
gains or losses were previausly recognised only ta the extent of the unrelated investor's intarast,

The transitional provisions require that the Standard should be applied prospectively to sales or contributions
of subsidiaries o associates or joint venlures occurring on or after 1 January 2018, Although the directors
anticipate that the adoption of AASE 2014-10 may have an impact on the Group's financial staterments. it is
impracticable at this stage to provide a reasonable estimate of such impact.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

2. PARENT INFORMATION

The following information has been extracted from the haoks and records of the parent and has been prepared in

accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.

STATEMENT OF FINAMNCIAL POSITION
ARSETS

Current assels

MNon-Current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

[LIABILITIES

Current liabililies
Mon-Current labilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Tssued capital

Retamed camings/{ Accumulated Losses)
Capilal profits reserve

Fereign exchanges reserve

Share Based Expenses Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Tolal profiv{loss)

Taotal comprehensive income

Cruarantces

2016 2015

$ $
4,782,447 916,922
26,424,795 23,988,511
31,207,242 24,905,433
132,818 118,066
132,818 | 18,066
3L.074,424 25,023 400
66,857,280 60,761,198
(60,013,799) (59,908,920
1,031,041 1.021.041
(136,723) (136,723)
23336625 23,276,003
31,074,424 35.023.499
2016 2015

S $
(104.57%) 100,494
{104, 379) 106,4%4

In the current or previous financial vear, MaxSec Group Limited has not entered inlo any guarantees in relation

to the debts ol 11y subsidiaries,

Contractual commitments

At 30 June 2016, MaxSce Group Limited had nol entered into any contractual commitments for the acquisition

of property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

3. REVENUFE AND OTHER INCOME

MNote
4. Revenue from continuing operations
Sales revenue:
- sale of poods

—  provision of services

Onher revenue:
— interest received

- unrelated parlics

Total mterest revenue on financial assets not at fair
value through profit or loss

R & T Tax Concession received

- other revenue

Tatal revenue

Oither income;

- gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

b, Tatal revenue and other income from continuing
operations

- atrributable to members of the parent entity

— atributable to non-controlling interests

c.  lneome from continuing operations and discontinued
operations

—  altributabla to members of the parent entity

altributable to non-controlling interests

Consolidated Group
2016 2015
$ F
4,314,112 5,160,506
4.314.112 5.160,506
30,161 41,737
30,161 41,737
207,924 213,249
43,618 34
251,542 213,283
4,595,849 5,415,526
4,595,849 5415520
4,505,849 5415526
4,505,849 34155260
4,595,849 3415,5326
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

4, PROFIT/L.OSS FOR THE YEAR

Naote Consolidated Group
2016 2015
B §
Profitloss before income rax from continuing operations includes
the lollowing specific expenses:
Expenses
Clost of sales 1.656,787 2591918

Tmpairment of non-current investments -
Fareipn currency translation losses -
Bad and doubtful debts;

trade receivables -

Tatal had and doubtful debts 5 ”

Write-ott of ohsolete stock - -

5. DIVIDENDS

No dividends have been paid or declared since the end of the previous financial vear,

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Mot Consolidated Group
2016 2015
b $
Cash at bank and on hand 4,967,802 BE 1,621
Shaort-term hank deposits - =
4,967,862 Ba1,621

Heconciliation of cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of

cash Mows is reconciled to items in the statement of (nancial

pasition as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 4,967,862 f51.621

Bank overdralls -

4,967,862 BE1.621
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
7. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Consolidated Group

2016 2015
5 §

Trade and other receivables (Current)
Trade dehtors 1,772,471 2178485
Provision tor impairment (1.766) (1,774)
Total current trade and other receivahles L7700, 706 2176711
Provision for Impairment of Receivables
blovement in the provision for impairment of receivables is as
follows:
Opening Balance {1,774) (1.774)
Change for the year 8 =
Amounts Written OfF ) E! =
Clozsing Balance (1,766) (1.774)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to any single counterparty ot group of
counterparties other than those receivables specifically provided for and mentioned within Note 7. The class of
assets described as “trade and other receivables™ is considered 1o be the main source of credit risk related to the
Grroup,

8. INVENTORIES
Consolidated Group

2016 015
b3 5

At cost:
Direct materials 433,844 401,625
Fimshed Goods 008,802 476,588
Total inventories at cost 1.042,706 578,513

9. OTHER ASSETS

Consolidated Group

2016 2013
5 5

{rher Assets (Current)
Security Deposit 17,497 16,925
Prepayments 45,152 1,566
Other Current Assets 54.496 - 16,542
117,145 094,333
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

1L INTERESTS IN SUBSIDAIRIES

Information about Principal Subsidiarics

The subsidiaries listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares which are held directly by
the Group. The proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group. Each

subsidiary’s principal place of business 15 also its country of incorporation,

Principal Place of

Business Ownership Interest (%)™
2016 2015
Subsidiaries of MaxSee Group Limited:
BOT Solutions { Australia) Pty Led Australia 100 100
BOT Soluticns (LK) Limited # UK 100 10300
BT Soluliens America lne, # LsSA 100 100
BOT Solutions (SEA) Ple. Lid # Singapore 10 100
(previously known as Magna Electronics Pre. Lid)
BOU Solutons (N2} Limited # MNew Zealand Loo 100
(previously known as Manz Engineering Limited)
BOT Intelligent Security Svstems Pry Lid Australia ) il
4C Satellies Limited Australia ] Gl
Ava Global DMOCC (incorporated on 27 April 2016) # UAE 1400 -
Ava UISA Inc. {(imcorporated on 7 March 20067 o (BT 100 2
Ava Germany GmblIl (incorporated on 29 April 2016) # Ciermary 100 -

¥ Pepcentage af Vorng power (5 (0 proportion i ownersiip
# Nod awdited by the parent entine s auwditor

Subsidiary financial statements used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements have also been
prepared as at the same reporting date as the Group’s finaneial stalements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant & equipment
AL GOst
Accumulated depreciation

Furnirre, fixtures and fnings
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

Total plant and equipment, lurnilure & [xlure

Total al cost
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Total Plant & equipment, furninire and firings

Movement in carrving amounts

Movement in the carrying amount of each class of property,
plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the
current financial vear;

Plant and Equipment

Balance at beginning of vear

Addinons{ Disposals)

Depreciation expense

Balance at end of year

Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings

Balance at heginning of year

Additions/[Disposals)

Depreciation expense

Balance at end of vear

33

Consolidated Group

2016 2015

b 5

662, 11% 17.334
(573.100) (553.553)
59,018 63,801
$7,903 71,486
{72,341 [71,486&)
15.562 -
104,580 3801
750,021 GRS, 840
(645441) (625.039)
104,58 [N )
63,801 42,202
44,764 23022
(19.547) (1.423)
80,018 H3 R0
16,418 -
(856) -
15,562 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

12. INTANGIBLES ASSETS

Consolidated Group

2016 2015
b £
Croodwill - deemed cost 731,772 03,500
Less: Accumulated amortisation - -
731,772 703,506
Research and development 2,929,666 2.929.800
Less: Aceumulated amortisalion (2.929,666) {2,920 660)
Patents 200,086 233 9K3
Less: Accumulated amaortisation . {261,618) (250,421}
4,468 3,562
Product development costs 1,885,746l 1,407 674
Less: Accumulated amortisation (473.438) 1223.764)
) 1,412,322 1,183,910
Tolal miangibles 2,148,563 1,892,978
Reconciliations
Crovelail]
Balance at beginning of vear 705,506 38 408
Lxchange Adjusiment 26,266 67098
Additions - -
Amertisation = -
Closing value at end of vear 731,772 03,506
Putents
Balance at beginning of year 3,562 -
Additions 904 3,562
Amartisation - -
Impairment — o
Closing valuc at end of year 4,468 3.562
Product Development Costs
Balanee at beginning of vear 1,183,910 1,038,112
Additions 478,087 297411
Amorlisation {249.675) {151,613}
lmpairment - -
Closing value at end of vear 1,412,322 1,183,910

Intangible assels, other than goodwill, have lnite useful lives. The current amortisation charges For intangible
assets are included under depreciation and amortisation expense per the statement of comprehensive income.

Croodwill has an infinite life.

Impairment disclosures
CGiondwill is allocated to cash-generating unit which is based on the Group's reporting segments:

2016

b

Security locks segment 731,772
Toral 731,772

2005

b
T05,506
T05,506G
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
12. INTANGIBLES ASSETS (Cont.)

The recoverable amount of cach cash-generating unit above is determined based on value-in-use calculations. Valuc-in-use
is caleulated based on the present value of cash flow projections over a S-vear period, The cash Hows are discounted using
the interest rate of 13%,.

The following assumplions were used in the value-in-use caleulatons:

Discount Rate

[EFS
Eel

Security locks segment ]

Management has based the value-in-use calculations on budgets for each reporting segment. These budgets are
hased on the expectation of a program of comercialisation of products 1o project revenue. Costs are caleulated
taking mto account historical gross margins, Discount rates are pre-tax and are adjusted to incorporate risks
associated with a particular segment.

13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Consolidated Group

2016 )15
b b

Trade and Other Payables (Current)
Trade creditors 890,782 1,331,521
Sundry creditors and accried expenszes 124,256 235,310
Total trade and other payables 1,015,038 1,566,831

14. PROVISIONS
Consolidated Group

2016 2015
5 $
Provisions (Current)

Emplover Benefis 119,862 101990
nhers 30576 0,376
159,438 171,566

Provisions (Mon-Current)
Lmploves Benefits - 53,663 43,650
53,663 43,6450

Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for emplovee benefits represents amounts accrued for annual leave and long service leave,

The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for annual leave entitlements and the
amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have vested due to employees having completed the
required period of service, Based on past experience, the Group does not expect the full amount of annual leave
or long service leave balances classified as current liabilities to be settled within the next 12 months. However,
these amounts must be classified as current liabilities since the Group does not have an unconditional right to
defer the settlement of these amounts in the event emplovees wish to use their leave entitlement.

The non-current portion for this provision includes amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that
have not vet vested in relation to those employcees who have not yel completed the required period of service.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

15, ISSUED CAPTIAL

{a) Issued and paid up capital
189 AT3 643 ordinary sharcs fully paid

(b) Movements in shares on issue
Beginning of the [inancial year
Shares issued during the vear:

- 7 Beptember 2015

- 28 Janvary 2016

=1 March 2006
End of the financial vear

{¢) Share Options

A summary of the movements of all company oprions issues is as follows:

Chptions outstanding as at 30 June 2014
Crranted

Forleiled

Exercised

Expired

Optons outstanding as at 30 June 20015
Crranted

Forfeited

Exarcised

Expired

Crprions outstanding as at 30 June 2016

2016 2015
Mumbhber ol Mumber of
5 5
shares shires
A1LE10, 928 66,857,280 |549ATI 6045 fl,761, 19
189,673,643 60,761,198 [H9.675643 f. 2R, 194
14, 0,0 280,000 - -
Th000,000 1,987,009 - -
136,837,285 J829.073 - -
410,500,925 60857, 280 189673 043 ai.7al, 198
Weighted Average

Sumber Exercise Price

24 2 0HD 000 2.5 cenls

£, 5000000 1.5 cents

2,500,000
28 200,000
5,000,000
[, 000, 000
L (KD
21,200,000

4.0 cents
2.4 cents
3.0 cents

2.0 cents
2.0 cents
2.8 cents

For infermation relating to the Company’s emplovee oprions, including details of aptions issued, exercized & lapscd during
the financial vear & the options curstanding at year end refer to Note |7,

16. RESERVES

Capiral Profits Reserve #
Share Based Fxpenses Reserve **

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

¥ Relates o profit an sale of listed investments

¥+ Relates o share based expenses
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Consolidated Group

2016 2015

$ S
L031,042 1,031,042
23,336,625 23,276,902
258,760 106,490
24,626,427 24414434
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
17. INTERESTS OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

a. Names and positions held of Parent Entity Directors and Specified Executives in otfice at any time
during the financial year are:
Directors
Bobert A Broomfield - Chairman - Non-Executive Dircelor
Geollrey | Cleaves - Chief Executive Otficer
Christopher Feraus - Executive Director

Tacobus | Landsberg - Non-Exceulive Dircelor

h. Directors’ Remuneration

Refer to the remuneration report contained in the directors’ report for details of the remuneration paid or
payable to cach member of the Group’s key management personnel (KMP) for the year ended 30 June 2016.

The totals of remuneration paid to KMP of the company and the Group during the year are as [ollows:

Consolidated Group

2016 2015

b b

Short-term emplovee henefits 318,616 237443
Post-employment benefits 29,504 22,557
Other long-term henetits y -
Share-hased payments 34612 E
Total KMP Compensation 382,792 260,000

Short-term employee benefits

These amounts inelude fees and benefits paid to the non-executive Chair and non-excculive directors as well as
all salary, paid leave henefits, fringe benefits and cash bonuses awarded Lo executive directors and other KMP.
Post-employment hencfits

These amounts are the cwrrent-vear’s superannuation contributions.

Other long-term benefits

These amounts represent long service leave henefits accruing during the year.

Share-based pavments

These amounts represent the expense related to the participation of KMP in cquity-settled benefit schemes as
measured by the fair value of the options, rights and shares granted on grant date.

Further information in relation to KMP remuneration can be found in the directors’ report.

¢. Shares Issued on Exercise of Remuneration Options
No options were exercised during the year, which were previously granted as remuneration.

d. Options and Rights Holdings

Details of these options are provided in the directors® report. The options hold no voting or dividend rights. The
options lapse when a director ceases their employment with the CGroup.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

17. INTERESTS OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (Cont.)

¢. Sharcholdings

Mumber of Shares Held by Parent Latity DHrecrors as follows:-

Halance Received as Options Private Balance
01072013 Rermumerztion Cxeruised Ilacement 0062016
Parent Entity Directors
Christopher Fergus . - - 12000000 12,0040 000
Faobert A Broomleld * 2,500,000 - - - 2500 00

# his, Lynette Jov Sanders, who is associated with Mr, Robert A Broombield, held 1,230,000 shares as at |5 September 2016,

18, AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Consolidated Group

2016 2015
b h

Remuneration of the auditor for:
auditing or reviewing the financial statements 74,590 6,703
taxation & accounting services 23,060 51,085
- due dilizence services - -
- taxation services provided by related practice of auditor = - =
08,550 117,788

19. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Consolidated Group

2016 2015

¥ 3

Profit/(loss) used in calculation of carnings per share (1,390,554} 4114710

Basic Profit{loss) per share =11.339 cents 0216 cents
Mo of ardinary shares on issue used in the caleulation of hasic

profit{loss} per share 410,510,928 |89.#73.643

Drilured Profit| loss) per share -11.322 cents 195 cents
Mo of ordinary shares on issue used in the caleulation of

diluted protit/{loss) per share 431,710,928 211,173,643
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a. The Group's main related parties are as follovs:
L. Kev management personnel (KMEP;:
Any personis) having aothority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
entity, directly or indirectly, including any Director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity, are
considered key management personnel,

Lor details of disclosures relating o key management perscnnel. refer w Mote 170 Interests of Key
Management Personnel (KMP).
il Chlier velated pariies:
(ther related parties melude entities controlled by the ultimare parent entity and entities over which key
management peraonngl exercise significant influence,
b, Transactions with related parties:

Transactions between related partics are on normal commercial lerms and conditions no more favourable than those
available lo other parties unless otherwise stated.

The following iransactions cecurred with related parlies:

L BOT Solutions America Inc, a controlled entity, shares a sales resource on a 30050 basis with Future Fibre
Technologies {UISA) Ine, a company of which our Chamrman s CLEO and Director,
ii. Controlled entities of the Company have emered into reciprocal reseller amangements with Future Fibre

Technologies Limited, a company which our Chairman 13 CEO and Director,

21. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Scement Information

Identification of reportable segments

The Group has identificd its operating sepments bused on the mternal reports thar are reviewed and used by the Board of
Dircclors i assessing performance and determining the allocation of resources.

The Group is managed primarily on the hasis of product category and service ofterings as the diversification of the Group’s
operations inherently have notably different risk profiles and performance assessment criteria,  Operating segmenls are
therefore determuined on the same basis,

The Group aperates in the smart card access control and sceurity locks industries. For smart card access control system, it
operates in three main geographic areas being Australia, United Kingdom and Middle East, United States of America. For
security locks, it operates under the company of BQT Solutions (SEA)Y Pre, Lid and itz wholly owned subsidiary — BOT
Solutions (M) Limited in Southeast Asia and New Zealand.

Basis of aceounting for purposcs of reporting by operating segments
a.  Accounting policies adopted

Unless stated otherwise, all amounts reported (o the Board of DHrectors, being the chief operating decision malcers
with respect Lo operating segments, are determined in accordance with accounting polivies that are consistent with
those adopted in the annual financial statements ot the Group,

b. lntersegment transactions

An internally determined transler price is set for all intersegment sales, This price is reset guarterly and 15 based on
whal would be realised in the event the sale was made to an external party at arm’s length, All such transactions are
eliminated on consolidation of the Group's financial statements.

Corporate charges are allocated to reporting segments based on the segments’ overall preportion of revenue
seneration within the Group. The Board of Directors believes this is representative of likely consumption of head
office expenditure that should be used in assessing sepment performance and cost recoveries,
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Intersegment loans payable and receivable are initially recognised at the consideration received/1o be received net of

[ransaction coses,

€. segment assers

Where an asset s used across multiple segments, the asset is allocated 1o the segment that receives the majority of
the evonomic value from the asset. Tn most instances, scgment assets are clearly identiliable on the basis of their

nature and physical location,

d. Segment liabilities

Liabilities are allocated to segments where there is a dircet nexus between the incurrence of the liability and the
pperations of the segment. Borrowings and tax liabilities are generally considered to relate 1o the Group as a whale
and are not allocated. Segment liabalities include rade and other payables and certain direct borrowings,

e. Segment information

i. Segment performance

A0-Jun-16
Kevenue

Falernal aales
Interscgment sales
Interest Income

Total sepmend revenue

Reconciliation of seoment revenug
STOUD revelue:

Chher revenue

Intersegment elimination

Kevenue trom discontinued aperations
Taotal group revenue

Sepment net profit from continuing
operations before fax

Met profit before tax from continuing
operations

Ji-Jun-15
Revenue

External sales
Intersegment sales

Interest rovenue

Total segmient revenue

Reconciliation of serment nevenue 1o
BT revenue:

Other revenue

Inersegment climination

Revenue from discontinued operations
Total group revenue

Sepment net profit from continuing
operations before tax

MNet profit before tax from continuing
operations

Australia Uk S SEA AVA Tutal
b 5 b 5 b b
2,116,328 G419, 756 40,606 1,237,392 - 4314112
874305 ;i ; (1) 522 - 1464917
AL 161 : ; 5 : 30,161
2 064, 854 910746 46,606 1,877,914 5,809,190
231,576 - - - = 251,370
(424,395) 5 - (640.522) - {LABH91T)
2302065 919,786 46606 123739 - 4595849
493739 (1207110 (1048970 (197.612)  (1460.075)  (1.390.554)
(1390554

<R i
2 156,736 788,966 RS 2176619 -5 la0306
832,227 - - 545050 | 398 178
41,737 ; ) : - 41737
3050, 7K 788 966 38085 2,722,569 - BA00.420
213,283 - - - - 213,283
(852,227} . S (545,950 S 1398178
2411756 THE. DG 38185 21766109 - 5415520
98,745 (63376) (46751 (249.264) ; 411470
411,470
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21. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CCONT.)

ii, Segmen! assels

Australia LK Ls S1EA A¥A Tatal
% 5 ¥ 5 5 5
I-Jun-16
Segment assets 0,302, 109 378142 67,444 2RIZ002 371,770 4151502
Sepment asser increases for the period:
capiral expenditnme - - z - -
acquisitions - - - - - -
Total group asscis 3,302,109 ITH 142 67 A48 2832002 571,71 [0L151,5062
Al-Jun-15
Segment assets 2030463 36240 44 34 3211634 - 5390107
Segment asset increases for the poriod:
capital cxpenditure 107 460 - - LAt LH - | 96,830
— acguisitions - - - - - -
Total group assets 2,137,023 304,626 44,354 3300024 5 5,787 457
iii. Segment liabilities
Australia UK s SEA AVA Total
b ] ] % b §
30-Jun-16
Segment liabilitics 20,729,587 Q2193 2534511 2,973 006 | a3 3R] A7 453 OHE
Reconciliation of segment liabilitics to
aroup labilities:
[ntersegment eliminations (16,760,588 (9EOE 1251 (SIN2T773) 0 (2712945 (1LBS051H) (36224 849
Total group liabilities 1960000 (687,532) (2,448.262) 262,061 132863 1228139
30-Jun-15
Segmeni liabilities 2LOTEOAT 10,093,147 2361885 3234114 - 36,868,103
Reconciliation of scament liabilites to
aroup liahilites:
Intersegment eliminations (16,849,948 (11, T960,202) (4942902)  (2,056,995) - (508000
Tartal group liahilities 4229008 (LOD3053) (2,621,017 1177016 - 1,782 053
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

22, CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with Profil after lncome
Tax

Profit/(loss) after income tax
Cash flows excluded from profit attributable to operating activitics:
finunce costs on debeniures
Nan-cash Hows in profit
=3 amortisation
depreciaton
write-ofT of bad debts
= write-0ft of ohsolele stock
- Share based expenses
- net gain on disposal of properry, plant and equipment
Unrealised gain/{loss) on exchange
Share of associated companies net profil aller income tax and dividends
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effeets of purchase and disposal
of subsidiaries:
i {increase)’decrease in trade and term recetvables
= [ncrease) decrease in prepavments
{increase)decrease in inventories
{increase)decrease inother assels
- increase/(decrease) in trade pavables and aceruals
- merease’(decrense) in income tax payahle
increased’idecrease) i provisions

Cash flow [rom operations

23, SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE DATE

Consolidated Group

2016
b

(1,390,554)

275,501

34,003

14,948

420,310
15,414
(164,193)
(38.226)
(441.400)

{2.121)

(1,275.058)

2015

411470

141,945
11,091

(3369

(1,523,320
(11,025
(215,522)
(3,583)
1,223,780

(31,467

The Directors are not aware of any significant events that have occurred since the end of financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

24, SHARE-BASED PAYMLENTS

On 19 May 2015, 6,500,000 share options were granted to key management personnel (KMP) under the
MaxSec Group Limited employee option plan to take up ordinary shares at an exercise price of 2.5 cents each.

The options are excreisable on or before 19 May 20200 The options hold no voting or dividend rights and are
not transferable.

The details of options granted to key management personnel are as follows:

Grant Date Number Vesting Date
19 May 2013 3230000 21-11-2016
19 May 2015 3,250,000 21-11-2017

The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at year-end was 4,90 years.

The fair value of options granted was 538, 500). These values were caleulated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model applying the llowing inpuls;

Weizhied average exercise price: 2.5 cents
Welghled average life of the option: 4,90 years
Expected share price volatility: L7.38%
Risk-free interest rate: 2.5% “Australian Government Bond L0Y

Historical volatility has been the basis for determining expected share price volatility as it is assumed that this is
indicative of future movements.

The life of the options is based on the expiry date of the options.

In accordance with Accounting Standard AASB2, the Company has presumed that the services to be rendered by
the KMI* as consideration for those options will be delivered over the vesting period, Accordingly the Group is
accounting for these services as they are rendered and are being expensed over the years,

&
2016 34,602
2017 19,299
2018 4,590
Total SRA00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

25,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s linancial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, accounts receivable and payable. loans 1o and
From subsidiaries,

Ihe tetals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 139 as detailed in the accounting
pohicies w these financial statements. are as follows:

Nate Consolidated Group
e 2015
b b
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,967,862 nEla21
Loans and receivables T 1,770,706 2,178,711
l'otal Onancial assets 6. 738.568 2,858,332
Financial liabilitics
Financial liabilines al amortised cost:
trade and other pavables 13 1,015,038 1,566,831
- borrowings - -
Total financial liabilities 1,015,038 1,566,831

Financial Risk Management Policies
The Board of Directors reviews the effectivensss of internal controls relating to commodity price risk, counlerparty credit
risk, currency risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk,

lhe overall risk management sirategy seels to assist the consolidated group in mecting its financial targets, while
minimising potential adverse effects on financial performance. N3 functions include the review of the use of hedping
derivative instruments, credic risk policies and future cash flow requirements,

Specific Financial Risk Exposures and Management

The main risks the Group is exposed to through its financial instruments are credit risk, hguidity risk and marleet risk
consisting of mlerest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price sk (commoedicy and equity price risk).

There have been no substantive changes in the types of risks the Group is exposed (o, how these risks anise, or the Board's
objectives, pelicies and processes for managing or measuring the risks from the previous period,

A,

Credit risk

Lxposure to credit risk relating to financial assets arises from the potential non-performance by counterparties of
cantract obligations that could lead to s fnancial loss w the Group.

Credit risk is managed through the maintenance of procedures (such procedures include the uilisation of systems for
the approval, granting and renewal of credit limits, regular monitoring of cxposures against such limits and
menitoring of the financial stability of significant customers and counterparties), ensuring to the extent possible that
customers and counterparties 1o transactions are of sound credit worthiness. Such monitoring is used in assessing
receivables for impairment. Depending on the division within the Group, credit terms are generally 30 days from the
invioice date.

Credit visk exposures

The maximum exposure to credit risk by class of recopnised financial assets at the end of the reporting peniod
excluding the value of any collateral ar other security held, is equivalent to the carrying amount und classilication of
those financial asscts (nel of any provisions) as presented i the statement of financial posinon,

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk with any single counterpurly or group of counterparties.
However, on a geographical basis, the Group has stgnificant eredil risk exposures 1o Australia given the substantial
operation in the region.

Credit risk relaled Lo balances with banks and other [nancial instilutions i3 managed by the Board in accordance
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with approved internal contrel policy,

Liguidity risk

Ligquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or otherwise
mecting ils obligations related w financial liabilities,  The Group manages this risk through the following
mechanisms;

preparing forward-looking cash flow analyses in relation to its operating. investing and financing activities:
using derivatives that are only traded in highly Hguid markes;

monitoring undraamn credit facilities;

obtaining funding [rom a variety of sources;

maintaining a reputable credit profile;

managing credit nisk relaled w fnancial assets;

only investing surplus cash with major financial institutions; and

comparing the maturity profile of Gnancial labilities with the realisation profile of financial assets.

Cash flows realised from financial assets reflect management™s expectation as to the timing of realisation. Actual
timing may therefore differ rom that disclosed. The iming of cash flows presented in the table o seltle Gnancial
liahilities rellects the earliest contractual setlement dates and does not reflect management’s expectations that
banking facilities will be rolled torward.

Markel risk

(1)

(i1

{1ii)

Interest vale risk

Fxposure to interest rale tisk anises on financial assels and fnancial liabilities recognised al the end ol the
reporting period whereby a [ulure change in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair value of
fixed rate financial instruments, The Group is also exposed to earnings volatility on fleating rate instruments.

The fnancial instruments that primarily expose the Group ro interest rate risk are borrowings, forward
exchange contracts, fixed interest securities, and cash and cash equivalenis.,

Foreign exchange visk

Exposure o foreign exchange risk may resull in the fair value or future cash flows of & fnancial mstrament

Muctuating due to movement in foreign exchange rates of currencies in which the Group holds financial
instruments which are ather than the AUD functional curreney ol the Group,

With insoruments being held by overseas ocperations, fluctuations in the US dollar and UK pound sterling may
impact on the Group’s lnancial results unless those exposures are appropriately hedged.

Other price risk

Other price risk relares to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fnancial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices lareely due W demand and supply factors (other than those
arising [Trom mlerest rate risk or currency risk) for commodities.

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk through its overscas materials sourcing, Contracts for the sale
and physical delivery of components are exceuted whenever possible on a pricing basis intended 1o achieve a
relevant index target. Where pricing termns deviate from the index, derivative commodily contracts may be
used when available to retwn realised prices to the index.

The Group 1s also exposed [0 securities price risk on investments held for trading over the medinm to longer
lerms. Such risk is managed through diversification of investments across mdustries and geographical
locations,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont.)

Fair Values
Fair value estimation

The fair values of financial aszets and financial liabilities are presented in the following table and can be compared fo their
carrying amounts as presented inthe statement of Anancial posivon, Fair value is the amount at which an asset could be
exchanged, or a liability sertled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length ransaction,

Fair values derived may be based on information that is estimated or subject to judgment, where changes in assumptions
muy have a material impact on the amounts estimated. Areas of judzment and the assumptions have been detailed below,
Where possible, valuation information used to calculate fair value is extracted from the market, with more reliable

information available [rom markets that are actively raded.

2016 2015
Consolidated Group MNote Carrying Fair Carrving Lair
Amount Value Amount Yalue
5 b 5 5
Financial asscts
Cash and cash equivalents (i 4,967,862 4,967 862 681,621 681,621
Trade and other receivables {i) L770, 706 1,770,706 2,176,711 2,176,711
Total financial assets - E‘-ﬁ 8.508 6,738,568 2,838,332 2,858,332
Financial liabilitics
Trade and other payahles i) 1,015,038 1.015,038 1.566,531 1,566,831
Total financial liabilities 1,015,038 1,.[}1 5,038 1,566,831 1,566,831

The fair values disclosed in the above table have been determined based on the Tollowing methodologies:

(1} Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables are short-term instruments in
nature whose carrving amount is equivalent to fair value. Trade and other pavables exclude amounts provided for

annual leave, which is outside the scope of AASD 139,
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DIRECTORS” DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the directors of MaxSec Group Limited. the directors of the company declare
that:

L; the financial statements and notes, as set oul on pages 20 to 51, are in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001 and:
a, comply with Australian Accounting Standards, which, as stated in accounting policy Nete 1 to
the [inancial statements, constitutes compliance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS); and

b, give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of the performance for
the vear ended on that date of the consolidated group;
2 in the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its
debts as and when they become due and payable; and
3. the directors have been given the declarations required by s 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 from the
Chiel Execulive OfTicer,

Geottrey T Cleaves, CEO and Director
Dated this 27" day of September 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
MAXSEC GROUP LIMITED

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of MaxSec Group Limited (the
company)}, which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June
2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss. the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consclidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended. notes comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information and the directors’ declaration of the
consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year's end
or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the
Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement.
whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with
Accounting Standard AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial
statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards
require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report
is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
report. whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

ghilty imited by B scheme aopraved uncer the Protassional Stardards Legislation



Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001. We confirm that the independence declaration required .b:"r. the
Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors of MaxSec Gra_up lelted.
would be in the same terms if provided to the directors as at the date of this auditors
repart.

Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion;

a. the financial report of MaxSec Group Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:

i. giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June
2016 and of its performance for the year ended on that date: and

ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations
2001; and

b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in Maote 1,

Report on the Remuneration Report

\We have audited the remuneration report included in pages 16 to 18 of the dirE{:‘tors: report
for the year ended 30 June 2016. The directors of the company are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of the remuneration report in accordance with s 300A of ’fhe
Corporations Act 2001, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the remuneration
report. based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.
Auditor’'s Opinion

In our opinion the remuneration report of MaxSec Group Limited for the year ended 30
June 2016 complies with s 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

WONG & MAYES AUDIT PTY LTD
Chartered Accountants

Silas Chan | Director

Dated this 27th day of September 2016

Dacument ref: 93854 _1
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= e R et T e i e [V i e i e
MaxSec Group Limited - Annual Report

ASX ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information required by the Australian Stock Exchange Lid and not shown elsewhere in this report is
as follows, The information is currenl as at 15 Seplember 2016,

1. Ordinary fully paid shares

{a) Distribulion ol sharcholders

Category (size of holding);

Number of holders Number of shares
1-1.4100 HER 325,980
10T =5 000D A3l 1,360,889
5,00 - 14,000 136 1,144,765
10 (-1, 000 4149 15,790,621
100,001 and over 141 391,688,673
(b) The number of sharcholders holding less than a marketable
parcel of 20,834 shares are: 62 5,513,541

() The names of the substantial sharcholders listed in the holding company’s register are;

Number of shares

[ Pandon Holdings Pre Limited 40,587,771
2 Ekoglabal Pty Limited 24 TR0 TRR
3 Picrce Security Ple Lid 23 206003
4, Cadence (90} Investments No 1 Pey Lid 22080 870
5 Picree Atlantic Ple Lid 2 B30 2EY
8. MWr. Michael MoGeever 15,000,000
7. 4 Coentrols Ine 12,800,000

(d) Vating rights
All ordinary shares (whether fully paid or not) carry one vote per share without restriction,

LA
L
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ASX Additional Information (cont.)

(e) Twenty largest sharcholders

The names of the twenty largest holders of quoted shares arc

R

-3 oL

21

HSBC Cuslody NMominees { Australia) [imited
Poplach Pry Limited

Bell Potter Nominees Limited

Piecrce Atlantic Pte, Limired

Pandon Holdings Pte. Limited

Ckoglobal Pty Limited

Drixson Trust Pev Lid

TP Morgan Nominees Limired

Bannaby Investments Pty Led

Mr. David Malcom Scuth

Pacitic Development Capital Lid

Jay-¥ Ine.

4C Controls Inc.

M Pt Led

W, Christopher Fergus

Lohster Beach Pry Ltd

Mr. Medl Richard Hingston — My Paoline Ruth Hingston
Mr. Michael David Bevan

Citicorp Mominees Pry Lid

UBS Mominees Pty Lid

2. Options

{a) Distribution of equity securities

Ordinary Shares

Number of shares

Percentage of
ordinary shares

The number of option holders, by size of holding, in each class of option are:

[- 1,000

10 E-5,000

SO0 110,000
10,00 = 100,000
100,001 and over

26,600,829 . 48%,
22,000 870 5.38%
21,008,000 5.12%
20,836,284 5.08%
20,542,146 3,00
19200, 788 4.69%
19,257,707 4,600,
18.627.0133 4.54%,
17,988,924 4.38%
17,000,000 4.14%
| &, 060, (O 4.06%
[ 5,000 00 3.65%,
12,800,000 3.12%
[2.567.822 3.06%
| 20000k D00 2,928
9670000 2.36%
T.A00.2309 1. 78%
T ] 1.71%%
A, 108,952 1499,
5880000 1.43%,
A8 225 303 TH AR
Number of holders A ur::::;;::
1] 0

1] 0

{ 0

{ 0

f 21,200,000
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ASX Additional Information (cont.)

(b} Twenty largest option holders

The names of the lwenly largest holders of quoted oplions arc:
Number of Percentage of
options  quoted oplions

E Panden Heldings Ple Limited 6.7 00000 11.60%
2 Mr. Geoffrey T Cleaves 3,000,000 23.58%
i Bannaby [nvesiments Pty Lid 4 000 00 18.87%
4 1M Pry Ltd 4,000,000 8. 87%
5 Mr. Robert A Broomfield 100000 4 7705
6. Mr. Jacobus Landsherg 500,000 2,365

21,200,000 100.00%

{c) Voting rights
Options do not carry voting rights



